VII. PROFESSORSHIPS

The John P. Wilson Professorship in Law.—This professorship was established in 1929 with funds contributed for the John P. Wilson Memorial Foundation by John P. Wilson, Jr., and Anna Wilson Dickinson as a memorial to their father, John P. Wilson, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar. The present holder of the professorship is Wilber Griffith Katz.

The James Parker Hall Professorship in Law.—This professorship was established in 1930 by the alumni of the School in memory of James Parker Hall, Dean of the School from 1904 until his death in 1928. The present holder of the professorship is George Gleason Bogert.

The Max Pam Professorship of Comparative Law.—This professorship was established in 1935 in memory of Max Pam, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar, with funds allocated by the Trustees under the will of Mr. Pam. The present holder of the professorship is Max Rheinstein.

VIII. STUDENT AID

SCHOLARSHIPS

A number of scholarships are awarded to students of outstanding ability who need financial assistance. Some of these scholarships are for full tuition, some for half tuition, and some in amounts in excess of the tuition charge. Application for scholarships should be made upon a form obtained from the office of the Dean of the Law School (except in the cases specified below).

The James Nelson Raymond Scholarships were established in 1930 from a fund given by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond. The income of the fund is used to provide three annual scholarships of approximately $500 each. In 1942-43 James Nelson Raymond Scholarships were awarded to the following: Stanley L. Cummings, A.B., Brown University; Sylvester J. Petro, University of Chicago; and Dale M. Stucky, A.B., McPherson College.

The Leo F. Wormser Scholarships were established in 1935 by friends of Leo F. Wormser, J.D. 1909, as a memorial to him. In 1940 an additional gift to this scholarship fund was made by Mrs. Leo F. Wormser in memory of Mr. Wormser’s mother, Mrs. Frida Wormser. Three scholarships, each paying full tuition, are awarded annually from this fund. In 1942-43 Leo F. Wormser Scholarships were awarded to Richard A. Mugalian, University of Chicago; Margaret P. Reichardt, University of Chicago; and George F. Squillacote, University of Connecticut.

Alumni Anniversary Scholarships are provided from funds contributed by various classes upon the occasion of special anniversaries of their graduation. In 1943 a contribution from the Class of 1933 on the occasion of its tenth anniversary was added to the fund. A portion of the fund has been reserved for students who have withdrawn from the School to enter the armed forces of the United States.
University Scholarships are awarded from a fund annually allotted to the School by the Trustees of the University. These scholarships may be for either full or half tuition.

One of the James Nelson Raymond Scholarships (approximately $500) and a number of University Scholarships for full tuition are awarded to entering students. Holders of these scholarships who make outstanding records in the Law School receive renewals of their scholarships or equivalent awards. In addition to these scholarships, approximately one-fourth of the University Scholarships for half tuition are reserved for entering students.

Applications for the following scholarships are to be made to the Committee on Scholarships, Cobb Lecture Hall, Room 203, during the period from January 1 to April 1 for the year following:

Junior-College Honor Entrance Scholarships.—A number of full- and half-tuition scholarships are awarded annually to graduates of junior colleges and to students with equivalent college standing, upon the academic record of the student and the recommendation of the college.

Divisional Honor Entrance Scholarships.—A number of full- or part-tuition scholarships are awarded annually to students who have completed the work of the College of the University of Chicago. These scholarships are awarded to the students making the highest number of points in the examinations offered in fulfilment of the requirements of the College.

The LaVerne Noyes Foundation, established July 5, 1918, by the gift of LaVerne Noyes, provides part tuition fees for students at any level of the University, including the Law School, who (1) shall themselves have served in the Army or Navy of the United States in the war for liberty into which the Republic entered on April 6, 1917, provided that such service was terminated by honorable discharge; or (2) shall be descendants by blood of anyone in service in the Army or Navy of the United States who served in said war; or (3) shall be descendants by blood of anyone who served in the Army or Navy of the United States in said war, provided that such service was terminated by an honorable death or an honorable discharge. Further information concerning these scholarships may be secured from the Committee on Scholarships, Cobb Lecture Hall, Room 203.

LOANS

Several loan funds are available to law students. Loans are usually granted only to students who have completed at least one year of residence in the School.

The Ernst Freund Loan Fund was established in 1922 by the late Professor Ernst Freund, and since his death has been augmented by other contributions.

The James Parker Hall Loan Fund was established by the alumni of the Law School in memory of the late Dean Hall.

The Floyd R. Mechem Loan Fund for Law Students was established in 1921 by the late Professor Floyd R. Mechem.
The Anna Louise Raymond Loan Fund was established by Anna Louise Raymond in 1932 for the benefit of students in the Law School, preference to be given to women students.

The Harry A. Bigelow Loan Fund was established in 1939 by the Law Class of 1929 in honor of Dean Bigelow.

The Julius Rosenthal Fund was established in 1903 by Judge Julian W. Mack in memory of Julius Rosenthal.

The Clark B. Whittier Law Loan Fund was established by Professor Clark B. Whittier in recognition of his previous connection with the University of Chicago Law School as a member of its Faculty.

University Tuition Loan Funds.—The University has established a loan fund from which loans may be made to students in need of financial assistance. The amount of the loan is limited to one-half of the student’s tuition charge. The loans bear interest at 5 per cent, are for not over one year, but may on proper showing be extended.

A form of application for a loan may be obtained on request from the office of the Dean of the Law School.

IX. FELLOWSHIPS

The Law School has available a number of fellowships for graduate students. Applications should be made not later than March 1.

Encyclopaedia Britannica, Inc., Fellowships (one or more) are assigned to students with considerable competence in the field of law. Britannica fellows engage in critical reading of the Encyclopaedia’s present articles in their special fields and recommend revisions and revisers. They may expect sufficient free time to take two courses quarterly, for which they pay tuition on a pro-rata basis. Annual stipends range from $1,000 to $2,000. Application may be made at any time to the Committee on Fellowships and Scholarships, The University of Chicago.

The James Nelson Raymond Fellowship was created in 1933 and 1934 by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond. The annual income is awarded to a research student in law whose record gives evidence of a capacity for distinguished work in legal research.

University Fellowships.—A limited number of fellowships are reserved for research students in law.

X. HONORS AND PRIZES

The Chicago Chapter of the Order of the Coif is an honor society founded to encourage scholarship and to advance the ethical standards of the legal profession. Its members are selected each spring from the 10 per cent of the graduating class who rank highest in scholarship. In 1941–42 the following were elected to membership: Robert B. Hummel, A.B., University of Chicago; Kent V. Lukingbeal, A.B., University of Chicago; Monrad G. Paulsen, A.B., University of Chicago; George W. Rothschild, A.B., Harvard College;

The Order of Wig and Robe offers an annual scholarship prize to the student who attains the highest standing in the work of the first two years. Students under both the Four-Year and the Three-Year programs are eligible for the award. In 1942–43 the Wig and Robe prize was awarded to John Paul Good of the Class of 1943.

The Nu Beta Epsilon fraternity has donated to the Law School a scholarship cup. A replica of the cup is awarded annually to the student who attains the highest standing in the work of the first year, and his name is engraved upon the scholarship cup. Students under both the Four-Year and the Three-Year programs are eligible for the award. In 1942–43 the Nu Beta Epsilon Cup was awarded to Dale M. Stucky of the Class of 1944.

The Nathan Burkan Memorial Prize, established in 1937 by the American Society of Composers, Authors, and Publishers in memory of Nathan Burkan, is an annual prize of $100 awarded to a member of the Senior class for the best paper on copyright law.

XI. STUDENT ACTIVITIES

The University of Chicago Law Review, founded in 1933, is published by the School under the management of a Board of Editors composed of students. In the autumn of each year the fifteen members of the second-year classes who rank highest in scholarship are invited to become competitors for election to the staff of the Review. From this group the Board of Editors chooses the editorial and business staff of the Review.

Because the size of the student body has been drastically reduced by the war, the management of the Review for the period of the emergency has been assumed by the Faculty. Professor Ernst W. Puttkammer has been designated Editor-in-Chief and a staff of student editors has been organized to assist with the publication of the Review.

The Board of Editors for 1942–43 was composed of the following: John Paul Good, Norman E. Jorgensen, co-editors-in-chief; William J. Durka, I. Frank Harlow, Joseph R. Harrison, Jr., George W. Overton, Jr., Sylvester J. Petro, George B. Pletsch, M. Virginia Spence, Charles D. Stein, Dale M. Stucky, James M. Wilson, editors; John W. Cervenka and Henry Synek, business managers.

The University of Chicago Law School Bar Association is an affiliated branch of the Illinois State Bar Association. Membership in the Association is open to any student in the Law School, and officers are chosen from the student body. A number of meetings are held each year, at which judges or distinguished members of the bar give informal talks upon matters of professional interest. In 1943 the Association established a scholarship to as-